SPINY LOBSTER COMMITTEE

Hilton Cocoa Beach Oceanfront Cocoa Beach, FL

June 16, 2016

SUMMARY MINUTES

Spiny Lobster Committee

Jessica McCawley, Chair Ben Hartig, Vice-Chair

Chester Brewer Jack Cox

Dr. Roy Crabtree

Council Members

Dr. Michelle Duval **Robert Boyles** Zack Bowen Anna Beckwith

Mark Brown Chris Conklin (via webinar)

Lt. Tara Pray **Doug Haymans** Charlie Phillips Dr. Wilson Laney

Council Staff:

Gregg Waugh John Carmichael Dr. Brian Cheuvront Mike Collins Dr. Kari MacLauchlin Chip Collier Kim Iverson Julie O'Dell

Myra Brouwer Amber Von Harten Roger Pugliese John Hadley

Dr. Mike Errigo

Observers/Participants:

Dr. Bonnie Ponwith Jim Estes Dr. Jack McGovern Erika Burgess Capt. Mark Gordon Iris Lowery Jocelyn D'Ambrosio Tom Matthews Tracy Dunn Jeff Radonski Dr. Marcel Reichert Dr. Mike Larkin Dr. Andy Strelcheck Bruce Irwin

Rick DeVictor

Nik Mehta

John Sanchez

Other Participants Attached

The Spiny Lobster Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened at the Hilton Cocoa Beach Oceanfront, Cocoa Beach, Florida, Thursday morning, June 16, 2016, and was called to order by Chairman Jessica McCawley.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I am going to call the Spiny Lobster Committee to order. Let me go over who is on this committee. Myself, Ben Hartig, Chester Brewer, Jack Cox, and Roy Crabtree are the committee members. The first order of business is the Approval of the Agenda. Are there any changes or additions to the agenda? Seeing none, the agenda stands approved.

The next order of business is the Approval of the December 2015 Spiny Lobster Committee Minutes. Are there any edits or changes to those committee minutes? Is there any objection to the approval of those minutes? Seeing none, the minutes stand approved. All right. The next order of business is the Spiny Lobster Landings Review. Kari, are you going to do that for us?

DR. MACLAUCHLIN: This is Attachment 1 in your briefing book, and it's just a review of spiny lobster landings over a long period. This is the information that we provided to the review panel, the APs at the joint AP meeting, and then also the SSCs will review this, and so we wanted to just give you a more comprehensive look at spiny lobster landings.

A little background on it, just to refresh everyone's memory, the stock assessment for spiny lobster was SEDAR 8, and it was completed in 2005 with an update in 2010, and the assessments were not accepted by the Gulf and South Atlantic SSCs, because they felt there needed to be a Caribbean-wide assessment.

The Gulf SSC designated spiny lobster as a Tier 3 of their ABC control rule and recommended that OFL be set at the mean of the most recent landings in the last ten years, which, at the time, was the 2000/2001 season through the 2009/2010 season, plus two standard deviations. Then the ABC be set at the mean landings of those ten years plus one-and-a-half standard deviations, and so that set the OFL at 7.9 million pounds and the ABC at 7.32 million pounds.

The council finished Spiny Lobster Amendment 10, and that was effective in January of 2012, and that put the ACLs and the ACT and accountability measures into place. The ACL was set equal to ABC at 7.32 million pounds, with an ACT set at 90 percent of the ACL, which was 6.59 million pounds. The accountability measure was that, if the landings exceeded the ACT, then a review panel would convene to assess whether or not corrective action was necessary.

In the 2012/2013 fishing year, the landings were not over the ACT. The following year, they were over 7.9 million pounds, and so this exceeded the ACT, ACL, and the OFL. The review panel convened in February of 2015. In the 2014/2015 fishing year, the landings went over the ACT, and so this triggered the review panel to meet again, which we met in March via webinar. This year, the landings are almost finalized. They have almost all of those in, but it is over the ACT and the ACL, and so that will at least trigger the AM, and the council also received a letter from NMFS in regard to this overage, which I will review after this.

This is a graph showing the landings. At the end of this presentation, there is a table, if anybody wants to see the numbers, but we have down here the recreational landings for spiny lobster. This light-blue line are commercial landings, and the green line is total landings. This just has a stock

ACL. There is no commercial and recreational allocation. The red-dotted line is the OFL. The purple is the ABC and ACL and then the ACT is this gray line.

The landings that the OFL was based on and the ABC was this period here, and so it was under these different levels, but then, in the past few years, they have exceeded that, and this is a presentation that -- This is from a presentation that was made to the AP from Tom Matthews. It was an FWC presentation, and I liked this slide, and so I asked if I could include it in here, because he showed these three different time periods with the landings.

This was a period of high landings and then, in 2000, the landings dropped drastically, for probably lots of different reasons. There was a different period here where they were low, and that's what the ACL was based on and the OFL. Then, in more recent years, the landings have increased, and so it looks like there is a new type of period for this fishery.

I have, in this presentation, both the review panel recommendations from 2015 and 2016, just to remind you what the 2015 review panel said. We talked a lot about where the increase in landings were coming from. There is a live market now being sent to China, and so there are higher landings later in the fishing year, January and February. The review panel did not recommend a new stock assessment, but then they did conclude that the ACL is the wrong methodology to manage spiny lobster. They also recommended the OFL should be redefined as the MFMT and then no recommended changes to accountability measures.

The 2016 review panel met via webinar in March, and these were the recommendations, and they were not all unanimous. We made them via motions, but it was to calculate the ACL based on landings from the 1991/1992 season through the most recent years, to capture the dynamics of the stock and the fishery. Then another was to examine setting the ACL based on a rolling average to capture the dynamics and then examine setting the ACL trigger based on landings and the landings to effort index.

I also have in here the AP recommendations, but we're going to get into that, and we have our AP Chair here, who is going to review that, and so I will keep going. I just wanted to let you know the next steps are the councils are meeting in June and then we have, for the South Atlantic SSC, it's on their October agenda to evaluate that. However, the Gulf SSC met a week or two ago, and they did make this motion. The Gulf SSC approved this motion: To recommend to use the time series of 1991 through the 2015/2016 for an ABC/OFL calculation for spiny lobster.

Then, additionally, and we can provide this. We can send this out to the council, but we received a letter. The councils received a letter from NMFS notifying the councils that the landings has exceeded the ACT in this most recent year and that will trigger the accountability measures, but then that the councils should consider changes to management measures to constrain the stock below the ACL. They have also noted in here that the review panels have recommended recalculating the ACL based on this longer time period in the SSCs.

We are going to I think move into the AP recommendations. The Gulf and South Atlantic Spiny Lobster APs met in April and reviewed this information, and they made motions, and so I think we are going to let Bruce Irwin review those. This is Attachment 3 in your spiny lobster briefing book.

MR. IRWIN: My name is Bruce Irwin, and I'm a lifelong commercial fisherman. I'm also the Chair of the Lobster Advisory Panel for the South Atlantic. At our recent AP meeting, the focus of the meeting was basically because we were exceeding the ACTs and the ACL, the ACL for two years, consecutive years, and the ACT for three consecutive years.

Basically, the advisory panel unanimously agreed that the ACT was the improper tool to use for managing the fishery, because the fishery has been on an effort limitation program since 1991, the trap certificate program, and the advisory panel felt that it was -- When you use the ACL and you exceed it and there could be a closure, that it was penalizing the success of the fishery. Also, the advisory panel -- There was a lot of disagreement on the data that was presented to us over short mortality and trap debris and ghost trap fishing. A lot of the data is old and outdated and needs to be updated. We talked about several things to do with putting fishermen with managers and the scientists to come up with better data collection, so that we can properly manage the fishery.

Now, we came up with the same conclusion as the review panel, and what it was is we wanted to put the ACL at a high enough number to where we weren't reviewing it all the time, having these review panels, and it came out to basically 9.6 million. I think it was like 9.58 million, and we also -- That was one of the motions that we used. We used the 1991 to the 2015/2016 season, and that's how that number came about, and that motion was unanimous.

Also, another motion was that we make lobster a priority species in data collection, because, right now, it's not a priority species. Over the last like three years, it's been between like forty-two million and fifty-five million dockside sales. We feel like that probably should be a priority species, and we just need better information, so we can correctly manage the fishery.

We also came up with a motion that -- We felt that, because of the increase in the ACL, we wanted to make sure that there was something on the bottom end that we also could trigger a review panel. What we came up with was in two consecutive years -- We used the low landing tiers and the low landings, which is basically 2001 to 2004, and it came out to 5.3 million pounds. If we're below those landings for two consecutive years, the review panel would come back in session and review what needed to be done and reasons for it.

The reason we went with two consecutive years was you could have a hurricane or tropical storms, things that knock landings down with no control of the fishery or the managers, and so we felt two consecutive years was a good number to do, and we used those low landings years, and 5.3 million was, we felt, a pretty good number to review, since we're at about in the seven million range now, over the last years.

We also had a -- There was kind of an agreement about the same type of two-consecutive-year trigger, because the panel really wanted to make sure that we weren't just raising it up to where it looked like we were just trying to get more. We wanted triggers to ensure that the fishery was being protected. There was agreement that if the average size and age decreased for two consecutive years that we would also, but we didn't put it in a motion, because we felt that there's not sufficient data to do that.

I want to talk about the state of the fishery a little bit. We're seeing something significant in a fishery that I've been doing this my whole life, and the landing trends are trending upward. Also, over the last three to five years, the lobster has increased in size, and I know the data doesn't show

that, which, again, I get back to lack of sufficient data. We need more, and that's why I didn't understand why they hadn't seen that, but we've definitely seen an increase in size of lobster, all the way from the little ones -- Like we used to never catch pretty much over two-pound lobster in the Gulf and up in the Marathon area, and we've had a lot of three to four-pound fish now that have showed up in the last three to five years, and so you definitely are seeing an increase.

Some of the reasons that I think that this is happening is, one, the trap certificate program and the fine work that the Caribbean Council is doing. Basically, we get most of our recruitment, almost all of our recruitment, from the Caribbean. Like Tony Iarocci, he has been working down there and they do the closed season now, where they used to fish year-round. The people have bought into the premise of they want to be stewards of their own fishery. The don't scrub the eggs and they don't take the shorts, and it has really increased their landings also, and I think it has helped our fishery a lot, too.

Now, I want to get back into this we need better data collecting, and mainly size and age. We feel that -- I am going away from the panel a little bit and talking about our organization, Florida Keys Commercial Fishermen's Association, because, after this meeting, we got together and we decided on a few things also, and I thought that you needed to hear this.

We need better data collecting, and so we want size and age to be the main factor in how we manage this fishery, and the reason we want that is that is fact-based science. It's not speculation. It's fact-based science, and we're trying to work with -- Many of you may know her. Her name is Yang from FAU, and we're working on a program. When she gets back in August, we're going to put together a data collection on the boats, where she puts people on our boats and we start collecting, and it's not going to happen overnight, but, over a period of time, we're going to have better ways to manage this fishery. We're going to have more information, and we need more information, and I'm hoping that the state and the federal people also get into sizing the lobster and aging them at the dock.

I wanted to tell you a little bit about like this year what happened, how good the lobster fishery is. This year, at our fish house, and our fish house is one of the main producing fish houses in the Keys, but, this year, we were on a thousand-pound limit until October, and the reason was every place was catching a lot of lobster, every place, and we were catching the thousand pounds. There were days we only pulled 200 to 240 traps to get it.

Until the month of probably right at the end of September, we were pulling 500 to get our thousand, and, I'm telling you, that's unprecedented. That's as good as it gets, as good as the lobster fishing gets. One of the things about the data that I don't think that we're working closely enough with Tom and his staff was he didn't really know that, and he didn't know that the effort was actually lower this year, and yet the landings were way high, and so I think that better coordinating with him also, where they know that. Effort went down this year, because 250 traps a day pulled instead of 500 for the first seven weeks of the season. That's basically all I have, and I am definitely open for any questions.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Thanks, Bruce. Great report. Are there any questions?

MR. BREWER: I don't have any questions, but I was privileged to attend the meeting down in Key Largo, and I just want everybody here to know how really impressive this AP was and the

amount of deliberation that went into the findings that they are putting before us, the recommendations that they're giving us. It, quite frankly, made me feel good to hear people discuss this particular resource when it was so obvious that they were concerned about the sustainability, so concerned about the future, and they were having to deal with what Luiz referred to yesterday as the fog, because the data is not there.

I'm very, very happy to hear that the commercial association down there, the Florida Keys Commercial Fishermen's Association, wants to take a hand in essentially doing some citizen science. I am also very happy to hear that your CPUEs have gone up like that. It sounds like they've gone up about 100 percent or so. That's great. Thank you.

MR. HARTIG: Bruce, you mentioned that in 2016 the 200 to 240 traps you were catching your thousand pounds and then it went down later in the season and it's 500. In that normal season when you were pulling that gear, is it usually about 500 to catch your thousand pounds, about 500 traps?

MR. IRWIN: If you're real lucky. Some years you don't break a thousand pounds. You catch a steady 600, 700, or 800 or 400, but this was very unusual to catch that many out of that low number of traps, and so it was very unusual. Since I've been doing it, it was probably just as good as I have ever seen it.

MR. COX: Bruce, that's an encouraging report. I will tell you, when you hear of a commercial fishery in the South Atlantic that's robust and you guys are doing good, I am mighty envious of you, but that's great. You guys have got a really good group, and it sounds like you're really well organized. I was just going to ask you, how is your price per pound doing with the increase in the fishery?

MR. IRWIN: This year, it was a little down from the previous say like three years. The market wasn't quite as strong in China, where we sell most of our lobster now, but, actually, there was a really good cooked market, and it did keep the price up there. I think we averaged -- I have seen Tom's report on it, and it was pretty accurate. It was just under \$8.00 for a pound. Like the two or three previous years, it was between \$10.00 and \$11.00, and so it was down this year, but the production was so good that I don't think anybody really cared.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Anybody else? All right. Thank you, Bruce. Tom, we have you muted right now, Tom Matthews, but I don't know if you have anything that you want to add. Now you're unmuted.

MR. MATTHEWS: Thank you. No, I appreciate Bruce's work with us. He is a great representative for his organization. I would suggest most of the things he mentioned were going on, with better management in the Caribbean, was more optimism than data. We do have a lot of data collected from the international FAO management for the region, and landings are actually still declining in the rest of the Caribbean. Most of that is likely due to that the fisheries have been fully exploited for a decade now, and there is still a fair amount of landing of undersized. It's better than it was, but there is still an awful lot of fishing pressure going on in the rest of the Caribbean.

We do measure size quite well in the Florida Keys. We would love more information on local areas, for example the area in the Gulf, very close to where Bruce is fishing. Those lobsters have always been bigger. It represents about a million of the six-million pounds, and so you have to take that into consideration, that those Gulf lobsters north of the lower Keys have always been bigger, for whatever reason, and we believe those are the stocks that are probably going to the Tortugas as they continue to grow and move.

Absolutely the fishery had a great year. That's why we broke the ACL. The last five or six years, landings have recovered about halfway of the 35 percent drop in landings since 2000. In 2000, landings dropped 35 percent. The last five years, they have recovered about half that distance, and so about 15 percent.

I would never characterize the spiny lobster fishery as being in trouble. I would characterize it as a fishery that could be better. There is a long-term management effort to reduce undersized mortality. That's due to the baiting practices. We believe just shy of a million lobsters die due to the confinement in traps.

A previous source of mortality was exposure in live wells. Very long ago, in the 1980s, fishermen carried around the bait in boxes dry. Partially on their own accord, with the help of some regulations to make everyone in the fishery do it, live wells went into place. Those live wells were a huge boom to the fishery, and probably responsible for that extra million pounds of landings we saw in the 1990s. We think the effect of live wells largely eliminated what we called exposure mortality, but that still meant there was confinement mortality for baits in traps. It's not that they can't get out and that they're starving, but mostly probably that predators can get to those lobsters. The lobster in a trap can't defend itself as well or escape immediately when something like a triggerfish comes into the trap, and so that's still a considerable source of mortality.

We have recently done work that was actually just published last year on ghost fishing mortality. With the increased number of boats, recreational boats, in South Florida, there is a lot more buoys cut off, particularly in the near-shore waters of the Florida Keys. When this buoy gets cut off, if the trap is not found, that trap probably continues to fish for about over a year, probably fifteen or sixteen months, and we think, over the course of the year, that trap will kill about ten lobsters.

Again, we think that total cost to the fishery is about three-quarters-of-a-million lobsters, and so there is two huge sources of mortality that certainly the fishermen don't want. They clearly don't want to lose their gear, but, when that gear is lost, it generally continues fishing for over a year, and so those are what we still think are the two biggest sources of loss that no one wants in the fishery, and much of our efforts in management have been to take those lobsters out of the loss column and put them into the win column. Thank you.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Thanks, Tom. The next item on the agenda is -- I'm sorry. Go ahead, Ben.

MR. HARTIG: Tom, that information on ghost trap fishing, I mean I have dove in the Keys a lot over my lifetime, and when I have run across traps that have been cut off by buoys that have been there for a long time, those traps fill up with all kinds of sponges and grass, and I rarely see a lobster in a trap like that, I mean to the point where an animal really couldn't even get into the trap unless it had to burrow down into the different refuge that was in the trap. How did you arrive at

Spiny Lobster Committee
June 16, 2016
Cocoa Beach, FL

that number? I mean have you done videos and things of that nature for periods of time, to see what happens to those traps over time?

MR. MATTHEWS: The study we did, and that's published under Butler and Matthews, the new traps were put out in September, and we simply left those traps. That study was done in Florida Bay, near shore on the ocean side and out at the reef. Just like a normal trap, as soon as the lobster went in it, that trap began to fish more effectively.

Occasionally, the traps did go empty, and they would stay empty, but, generally, at some point, a lobster would enter that trap again and they would start fishing again, and so the fishing was in waves. A handful of traps did catch most of the lobsters, but, no, when a trap did quit fishing, that is didn't have anything in it, a short while later, that trap started catching again, and so there was a wave going on. That study was done for three years. We examined 300 traps weekly over the course of three years.

MR. HARTIG: A follow-up. Did you see the same things that I did about traps filling up with debris over time?

MR. MATTHEWS: Absolutely. A trap would generally have what the fishermen call the rolling moss or grass would cover that trap. Unfortunately, when that happens, everything in it usually dies, because of the lack of oxygen. That algae, that rolling grass, uses up the oxygen, but, when it went away a couple of months later, the trap would start fishing again.

MR. HARTIG: Thank you.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Any more questions for Tom?

MR. IRWIN: It's not really a question, but it's kind of a -- I wanted to give you a different outlook on the ghost traps. Technology has brought us a long way in recovering our traps. I can tell you that I used to lose about 250 traps a year. That was my total loss, what I lost, and now we have such good electronics that we can actually mark the individual trap when we know there's a gap in our line, and we can come back to it, on slack tide or when the water clears, and we can get it back. This year, I lost 116 traps out of almost 3,500. Like I said, I used to lose about 250, and so technology has really helped in that, and so I think it's less of a problem than it used to be.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Thanks for that clarification. Any more questions? All right. The next item on our agenda is for committee action to discuss and take action, as necessary, and provide direction to staff. You know who you are, if you're on the committee.

Something you might want to consider here is, since there is an issue with the ACL, I think that we could entertain a motion to start an amendment to change the way the ACL is calculated. You have, as one of your documents, the motions that the AP made, which actually the Gulf Council SSC approved for the recalculation of the ACL, and so if someone on the committee would like to initiate that.

MR. BREWER: So moved.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Let us get that on the board, about that motion looks like.

Spiny Lobster Committee
June 16, 2016
Cocoa Beach, FL

MR. BREWER: Jessica, you said their SSC has approved it, but it hasn't gone to their full council yet though, right?

MS. MCCAWLEY: Correct. It will at their meeting next week in Clearwater. Okay. Chester, I believe that's your motion on the board. It's to direct staff to start work on an amendment to revise the ACL, based on the review panel recommendation, starting with the 1991/1992 year through the 2015/2016 year. Ben, was that a second? Okay. Now it's under discussion.

MR. HARTIG: I think that graph that Kari put up earlier that has the recreational landings on it, it shows that the recreational landings, during the years when the commercial fishing was going up, was going up as well, pretty much in concert with those increases, and so I think that's what sold me.

There was a lot of discussion at the meeting about the market, the Chinese, the later fishing of the commercial fishermen, because the fishery had become worth so much money, but I think what sold me was that the recreational landings were keeping pace with the increases in the commercial, except for the last year. I see that has gone down in the last year, but I thought this new productivity might be real and that we could take advantage of it.

DR. CRABTREE: I don't have any problem really with the motion, but it is sort of anticipating what our SSC is going to do, and they will take this up in October. Of course, our ability to do this is going to depend on what comes out of that meeting, but if they agree with the Gulf SSC and then give us a new ABC, it seems like it could be a pretty simple amendment that we just update the ACLs based on a new ABC.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Any more discussion on this? Once again, just to add a little bit more here, the time period that was used to set the ACL originally for lobster was a period when the fishery was at a lower period than it is now. It's not at the highest period that it's ever been, but this is a longer time series that might better capture, better reflect, what's been happening in the fishery and be a positive change, so that we're not hitting this number that was put in place during a down time in the fishery.

MR. BREWER: Does this motion, as worded, capture sort of the intent of the AP that there be an accountability measure that would be this lower number that was a trigger that would then trigger an action to come in and review and find out what the devil is going on?

MS. MCCAWLEY: It doesn't. Why don't we dispense with this motion, and then we'll come back to exactly what you're talking about right now.

MS. LOWERY: I would just -- Because here you're referencing -- I think the review panel made a couple of recommendations regarding looking at how to revise the ACL, and so I might suggest that you keep this motion a little bit more general if you're moving forward with it and just looking at options as far as revising the ACL and how to do so.

MS. MCCAWLEY: All right. Is that general enough now or better?

MS. LOWERY: Yes, thank you.

MR. BREWER: I accept the change.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Thank you. The seconder, Ben, do you accept the changes? Thank you. Okay. Is there more discussion on this motion that's on the table? **Is there any objection to this motion? Seeing none, that motion stands approved.** Chester, would you like to talk about your accountability measure?

MR. BREWER: I will let Kari phrase it, but what I would like for the motion to talk about or to deal with would be the accountability measure that is set forth in the recommendation from the AP that would have a lower number as a trigger to -- I should say if that lower number was experienced in two consecutive years, that it would trigger a review by the AP to determine what was going and make further recommendations to -- Perhaps make further recommendations to the council on how to deal with it.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Thanks. Okay. We're getting that on the board right now. That motion reads: Include an action to consider the AP recommendation for the accountability measure. There is the wording for the accountability measure. It was to recommend that there be a lower landings trigger, based on the average of the three low landings years, which was 2001/2002, 2002/2003, and 2003/2004. That would initiate a review panel if below this average for two consecutive years, and it's been calculated that that average is 5.3 million pounds. Do I have a second to that motion? It's seconded by Ben. Now it's under discussion. Are there questions about this particular motion?

MR. HARTIG: I just would like to thank the industry for coming up with something that they think would work for a conservative estimate to look at spiny lobster management if it changes, the productivity level that it's at now.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I just want to note that there was some other discussion at the past couple of meetings, the AP meeting and the review panel, to talk about some other possibilities of some type of ACL trigger, something that was lower. There were some interesting things that were discussed. There were some motions that Kari showed us earlier that came out of that review panel meeting.

I think there might be some other ways to calculate this in the future, but I think it's going to require FWRI collecting some additional data to get to that point, where we could calculate this another way, and so this might be as good as we can do in the immediate future, until FWRI can get some additional data. Any more discussion?

DR. CRABTREE: Just thinking about this, this really is not an accountability measure. Accountability measures are designed to prevent going over ACLs, and that doesn't seem like what this is, and it's not clear to me that it would really need to be an action or in the regulations. This is just sort of the council's intent of something you're going to watch, and, if this happens, you're going to convene the AP to take a look at it.

It might be easier, if that's what you want to do, to just incorporate it into the plan amendment that you're going to do this and things, because I don't think it really meets the definition of an accountability measure, and I'm not sure you would need to have alternatives and go through all of that stuff with it, but I think that's something, Kari, to talk to the attorneys about and all, but it might be simpler than having to construct a whole action and alternatives.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Those are good points.

MR. COX: For some of us not familiar with the Florida lobster stuff, what is bully netting? Are you familiar with bully netting?

MS. MCCAWLEY: Yes, I am. Bully netting -- There is a table, I believe it was at the back of the presentation that Kari gave, that shows the breakdown of the particular portions of the fishery. In Florida, the fishery is taken, on the commercial side, by traps, by bully netting, and by diving. We have specific endorsements for diving and for using traps. We don't have a specific endorsement for bully netting, and so you would just get a general lobster endorsement. It's more open access, I guess you would say, than the other two.

Bully netting is usually done at night. It's done in shallow water, where the fishermen are on the front of the boat and using a particular type of handheld net to get the lobsters onboard. Some say that it's the preferred method to take the lobsters for the live market, because the lobsters would be in the most pristine condition, taken from the bully net, whereas they might get banged around a little bit in the traps, and so just, depending on who you ask, some people say that the bully-net lobster might be a more pristine lobster for the live market.

The bully-net fishery, if you look at this landings table, has gone up in the last few years. It has somewhat leveled off last year, but it has become a greater percentage of the fishery. Also, there have been lobsters taken in stone crab traps, which is another issue that the FWC had been working on, to limit that recently. Then, of course, lobsters are taken by the recreational fishery as well.

MR. BROWN: So you said it was an open-access fishery. Do they have a limitation on the harvest for that fishery at all?

MS. MCCAWLEY: They do. They have limits on a number of different aspects of their fishery, but they have -- I can't tell you what they are off the top of my head, but they do have a daily bag limit, I believe. I would have to look up specifically what they are, but, when I say it's open access, you just need this spiny lobster endorsement. If you're trying to get into the trap fishery or the dive fishery, there is an additional piece tacked onto your endorsement. Like, on the dive side, it's the Commercial Diver, or CD. Then, on the trap side, it's an additional endorsement on that lobster thing for you to use traps.

MR. BROWN: I didn't know anything about it until this past summer. I had never even heard of it, and I had a bully-net fisherman on the boat, and he had his commercial permits and everything, and he showed me pictures of his vessel. It was pretty much all live well, and it was pretty unusual. I didn't know that that existed.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Yes, and it's something actually that the FWC has been looking into over the past couple of years, to consider additional regulations for bully netting. You can also recreationally bully net lobsters as well, and so the same time periods that it's open, the miniseason, et cetera, you can bully net during those same recreational openings for lobster, and it is a big family activity for recreational fishermen to bully net. Even though traps have been around for a really long time, the bully net fishery was the original way that lobsters were taken for the commercial market.

MS. BURGESS: I just checked our regulations to get the hard number on that. Bully netters, as well as divers, are limited to 250 lobster per vessel.

MS. MCCAWLEY: 250, but the FWC has been considering additional regulations for the bully net fishery since that portion of the fishery has been increasing over time, and so we've done a lot of workshops. We have talked to the industry, and they are still considering whether or not they would like additional regulations.

Now we're back to the modified motion that Kari worked on. **Based on the comments that Roy made, we have modified the motion to say: Include the AP recommendation for the low-landing monitor measure in the amendment.** Then the recommendation from the AP is pasted below. Chester, do you think that that reflects --

MR. BREWER: Very adequately. Thank you.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Ben, are you good with that? Okay. **Any objection to this motion? Seeing none, that motion stands approved.** Is there anything else that the committee wants to talk about for this particular amendment that we're suggesting to start? Do you think that we need to give direction to staff that this go to the SSC in October or is that self-explanatory?

DR. MACLAUCHLIN: We had already planned to bring it to the SSC, because they have to review the OFL and the ABC. We will have a chunk of time for them to review the landings and a lot of the other information that the review panel received. Then, as far as timing, you probably will discuss that in Executive Finance. Then you will also have to coordinate with the Gulf Council's schedule for this amendment, which we'll know a little more about in September, because they will have their June meeting next week and then an August meeting. We will have a little more of what they want in there and bring back probably an options paper, I would think, in September for you guys.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Do you think this is going to be a joint amendment with the Gulf?

DR. MACLAUCHLIN: I believe that, to change the OFL and ABC, that it has to be a plan amendment, and so it will have to be a joint amendment.

MS. MCCAWLEY: We know how much we're excited about joint amendments. All right. Any more discussion on starting this new amendment? All right. The next item that we have on the agenda is Tom Matthews is going to go over, give us a PowerPoint, on spiny lobster traps in closed areas of the Keys. Part of this presentation, and I don't want -- Spoiler alert here, but part of this presentation is about the areas that the council established a number of years ago as some no-trap zones in the Keys. This was a presentation that was given to the AP. I thought it was pretty interesting, and I suggested that it be given to the council.

MR. MATTHEWS: We started the study to actually look at -- There is three types of no-trapping areas in the Florida Keys. The Sanctuary Special Protection Areas have been in place for many years and are marked with buoys and are on the navigational charts. The Pennekamp State Park has no-lobstering zones that are closed to all access, to both recreational and commercial fishermen. Those are not on charts, but they are marked by buoys in the water, and, a few years

ago, the National Marine Fisheries Service, to protect the endangered Acroporid coral, created what we're calling the NMFS Acroporid Protection Zones.

The slide we're on now is just a nice example of what these zones look like. They were designated in 2012. There are no buoys, and they're not on charts. There are sixty sites of various sizes, going from as little as 200 meters across to as large as, on the slide we're looking at, that Area 15, that's actually about four-kilometers long and one-kilometer wide.

These total sixty areas cover fifteen square kilometers. If you look at the Upper Keys there, with the Elbow and Key Largo Dry Rocks, the blue dots are where Acroporid colonies were found and surveyed by many researchers working on corals over the years. The square boxes marked 37, 36, 38, there at the bottom, are examples of these closed zones, and so I show you that orientation so you can think about how close these areas are to each other.

If there were boundary markers on these, some of these markers would actually be closer to each other in open fishing areas, and so, because these areas are so numerous and so small, it could be relatively confusing to have buoys on these, and there is also currently Pennekamp zones in state waters, and so very near these, that aren't shown on this chart.

The affected community, there were about 470 trap fishermen in 2014. About 440 had landings. There is about 475,000 traps used in the fishery right now. In the Atlantic waters, the federal Atlantic waters, where these zones were, we think about 120 fishermen use traps. There is an approximation there, because we don't know exactly where each fisherman fishes.

They report this on these fairly large zones on trip tickets, but we do know about half of the fishermen only fish in the bay and Gulf, and that leaves about those 250 fishermen to fish on the ocean side, and an even smaller amount of those fish in the Florida Keys, as opposed to Miami or west of the Marquesas. There is about 2,400 traps in all three of these zones, about 600 traps in the National Marine Fisheries zones, and so, in these sixty zones that we're talking about now, we estimate there were about 600 traps in the two years we did these surveys.

Why these zones were created, we have done surveys, many years ago, and we basically went out and found a buoy and dropped a camera down and took a picture of what that trap was doing on the bottom. From that survey, we found out about 2.5 percent of traps in the Atlantic, and so that means about -- Of those 200,000 traps that are used in the Atlantic, about 2 percent of those were actually fished on coral, like the picture on the top-right-hand that we're seeing there.

While we were doing these studies to see what those traps were doing to coral, December came around. The winds started blowing, and the traps started moving, and that's the figure on the lower-left. Where the drawing is was the original picture. After a couple of days of the wind blowing twenty-knots, this trap moved, and it slid across the bottom in the area outlined in yellow, scraping away the coral underneath it. This is a very extreme example of the picture.

Usually the traps move in more of a straight line, about ten feet, but they do quite a bit of damage when they move. This is a seventy-pound trap sliding across the bottom. It scrapes and dislodges much of the living material in its path. The picture we see there on the right was a trap picture taken during the survey, and so you can see it's right next to the coral. It's in a high state of decay, and so what we think basically happens here is a trap moves when these storms, either tropical

storms or typical winter storms, until the trap slides into the reef. The trap being next to or near the reef, in that picture on the lower right, is a fairly typical shot. The two sources of damage occur when the trap is actually put on the reefs, which is a minor source of damage, but the larger source of damage is when traps go mobile during the storms.

The study we did, in September of 2014, we visited eighteen of those sixty zones, the Sanctuary SPAs and the Pennekamp closed areas. The first thing we did was, in combination with the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council, mail out the brochure we see there on the bottom right. This has the maps, the markings of all the areas, and so all fishermen with traps received a copy of this brochure in the mail.

The next thing we did was, starting in August, we went out to eighteen of these zones and put the tag you see here on traps that were inside the area. Almost every trap we found in the area -- If a fisherman had a line of traps, we might have only tagged every other one or something, but each fisherman with traps in those eighteen areas we visited was given a courtesy notice, saying that they were in the zone. We gave the website to look up that information for the closed areas, and so each of these buoys, we would pull the rope tight and we would get an exact location, within a meter, of where that trap was located.

We came back the next year and did the same thing again. We surveyed traps in these closed areas in both 2014 and 2015. There were no storms in August or September in either of those years, and so it was unlikely that any movement of these traps occurred. They should have been generally where the fisherman had put them that season.

Here is an example of trap locations in one of these National Marine Fisheries Service protected areas. There are, of course, no buoys, and so the fishermen had no visual way to know the areas were there, and each mark, the round circles, the X's, and the triangles, are traps belonging to different fishermen.

In this area, there were three fishermen, and you can see the traps were generally used in lines, as fishermen do. This is put over a photograph of the reef from a satellite view, and so you can see some of the traps were in open sand areas and some were on coral, but, basically, this diagram shows one of the conclusions from the study in 2015, before the educational campaign, is that fishermen were utilizing these areas just like they would utilize any other reef area, and there is what appeared to be little recognition that these zones existed.

This is a photograph and buoy locations, again, with the markers again being different fishermen. The squares would be the same fishermen, but it's of the marked areas in the Pennekamp State Park. There is a picture of the buoys they used. Along the long axis, there is buoys regularly spaced, and so you can easily see the buoys between.

You can see, in this area, that fishermen tended to fish some traps a little bit inside of the boundary marker, and so this made us believe that the fishermen had good recognition that the zones were there and they fished these boundaries in particular, but, as you can see from this, the coral is very nicely outlined by those dark areas with the halos around them. The very dark areas are more seagrass or sand bottom, and so, very nicely in this area, the boundary is a little bit away from the coral, and so even though the fishermen were fishing a few traps within the boundary, there do not appear to be any traps on corals, using this photograph.

Here is some of the data. Controls, we simply went to existing coral reefs that did not have any specific management around them. The dark black bar from 2014 and the gray bar from 2015 in the controls showed there is approximately ten traps in these areas per square kilometer all the time, and so that's about the average density of traps.

In the National Marine Fisheries zones, there were actually forty traps. That difference in the total number of traps might simply indicate that these were better fishing areas. Of course, these were high-profile coral areas with plenty of Acroporid corals on them, and so the fishermen might have generally used these areas more often. After the educational campaign, the gray bar showed that there were about half as many traps in the area, and I will talk about the number of fishermen shortly.

In the Pennekamp state zone and the Sanctuary zones, there were a handful of traps, ten or five, before the educational program, and, again, those traps were mostly along the boundary, but the number of traps in the zones dropped significantly after the educational program. Here is the examples of the buoys. The Pennekamp buoy is the spar, and the yellow buoy is the corner marker.

Our research results are that there are more traps in unmarked MPAs. Traps in the marked zones had many fewer traps inside of them, and the marked ones had more around it. Very importantly, in the survey the second year, after the educational program, 60 percent of the fishermen were no longer fishing in the zones. The down side was that a few additional fishermen did enter the zones, but this did nicely show that directed education can reduce the number of fishermen utilizing these zones.

Our conclusion is that educational efforts reduce the number of trap fishermen in the zones, in both buoyed and un-buoyed areas. Marked MPAs had fewer traps and fewer fishermen. The size of the boundary makes a difference, and so most of the incursions in the marked zones were within about fifteen meters of the buoy, and so it's hard to evaluate if that's a large or a small area. Think about the size of a boat being forty feet. Fifty meters would be about three times, four times, the length of that boat, and so this is a relatively short distance, if you're actually on water maneuvering the vessel, but, again, those boundary zones of fifty meters did incorporate well over half of the buoys inside marked areas.

The downside of this is trap debris occurred throughout all of the closed areas, and so this doesn't mean that the fishermen were fishing inside the zones and lost the gear. We believe that source of trap debris was when storms, particularly hurricanes, moved the traps ten or twenty or even hundreds of meters, and so the down side is that small closed areas do not protect corals from trap movement when those traps are moved during storms and lost.

Some information I think you've heard before is that the publishers of nautical charts are very resistant to include zones that only affect a few hundred people. We estimate if corner buoys and buoys were placed along the edge, to effectively mark them, we would need about 400 buoys to mark these sixty zones. There is a significant cost. The cost of installing and maintaining a buoy is somewhere between \$500 and \$1,000 each.

That would be a lot more buoys out there, more than any other program has ever put out. Those are a potential hazard to navigation, and the buoy location, because some of these zones are -- Again, if you look at the figure, 37, 38, and 39, even if those were just marked with corner buoys,

the corner buoys would be much closer to each other, and so, without a chart to effectively use the corner buoys, they visually might not distinguish zones from each other, again. Even though we could put buoys on these, there is a possibility that they might still be difficult to recognize the exact boundaries of the buoys.

This is just acknowledgments. The Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council was very involved in the educational campaign. We provided the list of fishermen who had traps and they mailed out the surveys. The National Fish and Wildlife Service, through NOAA's Coral Reef Program, provided funding for us to do this work. Thank you very much.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Thanks, Tom. Are there questions for Tom about this presentation?

MR. HARTIG: Not a question, Tom, but I would like to thank you for the way that you went about your education program. I think it looked like it was pretty effective, although it seems like it needs to be ongoing, to get the extra fishermen that continued to get in after you got the other ones out. That was interesting. It seems like other fishermen would go through that area and see no buoys and may not have the education about those areas and then put their traps in that area that didn't have any buoys, and so I don't know if that's the case or not, but I would like to thank the agency for how they did this.

MR. MATTHEWS: Ben, I think that's exactly what did happen. That personal education worked very well, but, again, there were still many dozens of fishermen that didn't fish there previously.

MR. HAYMANS: Just a couple of questions, I guess. Does the state provide the -- I mean it's less than 500 people, and you guys have the GIS world wrapped up. Do you provide charts to the fishermen when they buy their license and do you provide the coordinates electronically, so that they can download them to their machines?

MS. MCCAWLEY: I am pretty sure that we're not providing that at the license sale point. Tom, I'm not sure if it's available on our website somewhere or not. Do you know?

MR. MATTHEWS: They are located on the federal websites, but a fisherman would have to hand enter those on a GPS. I don't believe we have software we can provide to load onto the multiple kinds of GPS that are out there.

MR. HAYMANS: So it's quite easy. I mean if little old Georgia can provide all of its artificial reef coordinates in three different formats that are easily uploadable, I'm sure you guys can do that as well. A quick question on the number. The 470 fishermen, is that the total size of the trap or is that just the fishermen in the area of these closed areas?

MR. MATTHEWS: That's the total number of fishermen that have been issued trap certificates. About thirty fewer than that seem to be fishing on a regular basis.

MR. HAYMANS: So the number of traps that these fishermen have varies tremendously. I mean we've heard the AP Chair say that he runs 3,500 traps, but, if there's only an average of 1,000 traps per fishermen, roughly, there is some pretty small fishermen out there as well, right?

MR. MATTHEWS: Yes, and, over the course of the last fifteen years, we've gone from 1,400 fishermen down to 1,000 in the year 2000. During those poor landings years, from 2000 to 2010, the fishery was further reduced, as gear consolidated into the hands of the bigger fishermen, but, for the last five years, we've had on the range of 500 commercial trap fishermen.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Are there more questions? I don't see any more hands. Tom, I want to thank you for taking time out of your schedule to participate in this meeting and to give us that presentation.

MR. MATTHEWS: Sure. Thank you.

MS. MCCAWLEY: The next item that's on the agenda is Regulations for Spiny Lobster Traps Outside of Florida. This is Attachment 5. I'm going to turn it over to Kari for her to review this with us.

DR. MACLAUCHLIN: Actually, I think it's maybe Nik Mehta from the Regional Office.

MR. MEHTA: Good morning. The Regional Office received an inquiry from a fisherman who wanted to harvest recreational spiny lobster off of Wilmington, North Carolina. We looked at the regulations, and there are no regulations prohibiting the gentleman from doing so. Florida has a prohibition on using traps for recreational harvest of spiny lobster off of Florida, but not off of North Carolina.

Basically, we looked at all the regulations and looked at all the MMPA implications, ESA implications, MSA implications, and he was good to go. We just responded with a letter, which is in the briefing book, and so let me know if you have any questions.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Are there questions about this? As he mentioned, Florida does not allow recreational lobster traps. I see questions.

MR. HAYMANS: What's the timing of when this gentleman wanted to put these traps out?

MR. MEHTA: He wanted to go ASAP. We got an official email from him in April of this year, and we responded to him on -- The date on the memo we wrote to him was April 26, but if you want to know more details on what he wants to do, he wants to put out about two to four traps. He will have a line and buoy from the traps. They will soak for about twelve hours overnight. The traps will be deployed twenty-five to forty-five miles out of Masonboro Inlet. They will not be under any marine sanctuary waters, and the traps will be in about eighty to 115 feet of water when deployed.

MR. HAYMANS: So distance from share and depth takes him out of an MMPA concerns.

MR. MEHTA: Right, and so we looked at all the Atlantic right whale prohibitions existing, and there are a whole bunch of regulations for pots used for American lobster and crab traps, blue crabs and so on, but no such regulations prohibiting spiny lobster traps. I went back to the original FMP, the Spiny Lobster FMP, back in 1982. At that time, there was only interest in recreational harvest of spiny lobster using dive gear and no use of lobster traps at all, and so I figured that's why this

issue was not in the original FMP, but now there is at least one instance of interest for harvesting spiny lobster using traps.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Doug, do you have any follow-up on that?

MR. HAYMANS: No, I just -- I am thinking of MMPA regulations, and I thought it dealt with the Southeast pot fishery and not specific to a species, but, also, if he's twenty-five miles out, he's outside of the right whale critical area for the fall, and so I don't think there is anything there.

MR. BOWEN: I'm not on the committee, but is this -- I have read so much, but is this the letter in there where it's got that he must have the yellow and blue? Can you explain that a little bit, because, when I read it at the house this past week, I didn't understand it, and so I'm glad this is coming up.

MR. MEHTA: Sure. There are existing color codes and requirements for trap gear that folks use for crabs as well as American lobster, and so I had to research which color code to assign to this gentleman, because there are no regulations prohibiting from doing so, but he still needs to have a code that's distinct, to enable law enforcement -- When they come to check and they see a trap, they want to be able to readily identify that this is a spiny lobster pot for recreational harvest, and so we came up with a unique color code for this gentleman, and he would use the North Carolina vessel registration number, to make it simple. He would have to use that on all gear, on the buoy and on the trap itself.

We had a series of meetings with law enforcement in Wilmington, as well as the Coast Guard off of Wilmington, and so everybody is on the same page that, if they encounter this, then they're all aware that this is happening and it is legal to do so.

MR. BOWEN: A follow-up. So if someone else in North Carolina or out of North Carolina, would they be prescribed the same yellow and blue circular that has to be -- I am recalling from memory, but I think it was ten inches in diameter?

MR. MEHTA: Yes, and it says that on the letter. I think it's about -- The circle should be at least twenty inches in diameter on a contrasting background, but, yes, I think, to be consistent, if somebody from South Carolina or Georgia were to be interested in doing so, then we would give them the same color, because I looked at all the colors that were being used by other gear and by other fisheries, and I didn't find this combo being used, but, to make them distinct from the North Carolina, then, if say someone from Georgia wanted to do this, then I would say use the Georgia registration on the vessel, on the traps, and on the buoy, but the same color code.

MR. BOWEN: Thank you. I appreciate this coming up. I was curious last week when I read it, and so I'm glad it came up, and you answered my questions. Thanks.

MR. COX: For a while -- Especially with black sea bass trapping, it would be nice if the South Atlantic had a page that fishermen could go to. There are so many new people in the fishery now and with the endorsements and stuff, and the people that used to fish knew how to do it, but to have something that they could go to that could educate them on how the trap needs to be designed and the breakaway links and the biodegradable panels and the actual legal size of the trap and mesh sizes.

There is a lot of information, I think, that would be very helpful to people that are interested in this kind of fishery, just like this lobster trap fishery, because I think you eventually -- We have a lot of lobsters off of North Carolina, and more people will probably be interested in doing it, and we have a lot of current in that area that he's talking about fishing. What happens if he loses his trap and how will that trap continue to catch and things like that, and so it just seems that it would make a lot of sense if we could put something on our website where you could refer fishermen to go to to answer some of these questions.

MR. MEHTA: I think that's a great point, but all of this info is already on our website, and a simple inquiry to our office and we would guide them to where it is on our website. In terms of the recreational harvest of spiny lobster, that is something for the council to decide. If you guys want to start prohibiting this, to make it consistent with what Florida has off federal waters, that is a council decision, but, in terms of educating the public as to what gear they can use, it's readily available on many different pages.

DR. CRABTREE: I think that's the real issue here, because I -- It may be just this one guy does it for a short while and he gives up, but, if, like you say, there are lots of lobster out there and more people start doing this, then the question for you is do you feel like there's a need for additional regulations or are there other concerns and all those kind of things, because none of that is addressed, and you would have to address it through the management plan.

DR. DUVAL: I am not on your committee, but I did get a call from Jack giving me a heads-up about this gentleman who was requesting to use trap gear, and I forwarded this letter on to our law enforcement staff. Not that they can do anything about it, but just so that they would be aware of this, and I don't -- I mean the advisory panel didn't talk about this at all.

I know we have an advisory panel member, Bill Mansfield, and he and I have discussed spiny lobster conservation a lot over the past couple of years. He is very enthusiastic about it, and I just was curious if it had come up at the AP level. It might be nice to get some input on that. I know that he has been concerned in the past about the population of spiny lobsters off of North Carolina is -- It's pretty far out there, but it's special, and they don't want to see the resource depleted at all, and so I do think it bears a little bit of conversation if this gear is going to continue to be allowed, and like Nik said, it seems like it was just inadvertent.

There was no deliberate conservation with regard to people using this gear outside of Florida. It just didn't come up at the time. I don't think anyone ever assumed that that situation would occur, and so we may want to think about at least limiting the number of traps, if this is going to be an allowable recreational gear.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Yes, I think you're right. I think it did not come up at the time in the discussions, because I just think that people didn't think that anyone would go try to put recreational traps out, but, as I mentioned, recreational traps for lobster is not an allowable gear in the State of Florida.

If you are using traps, there is a lot of very specific requirements, from marking lines and trap size and dimensions and panels. I mean there are so many requirements. It just seems a little odd that we would have all these things in place for the commercial spiny lobster fishery off of Florida, but we wouldn't have anything outside of that area.

It's really up to the committee how you want to proceed on this. We are starting a plan amendment. I don't know if this would be a good action in that particular amendment, since it's going to be joint with the Gulf, but it's something that the committee could consider, to extend regulations or add regulations in the areas outside of Florida for how people can use traps or the specifications for the traps, limit the numbers, what have you. What is the pleasure of the committee on this item?

MR. COX: I think we should move forward and develop some kind of motion here. I have attempted to -- Years ago, I tried some lobster traps that were made in Florida and tried them on some of our area that we dive. They weren't very successful. I think our lobsters are much bigger and older, and so, if we did try this, I don't think we should be held to the same sizes as maybe the Florida folks are, because our lobsters probably -- It wouldn't be effective, and maybe we could have a little bit bigger trap or opening or something. I don't know enough about the lobster fishery, but it's certainly something that I think we should probably get ahead of. As more and more of our fisheries close and we've got shorter seasons, I could just see something developing, and it would be nice to have the conversation.

MS. MCCAWLEY: So what do you think the motion should be?

MR. BREWER: I just hate to see the effort that's going to be necessary go in because we've got one guy who potentially is doing this who, after a couple of months, may decide that this was not something for him. He is not going to be able to, I don't think, sell these lobster, or he shouldn't be selling them, and so it's for personal consumption, and how long are you going to be carrying these sixty or seventy or eighty-pound lobster traps out on your twenty-three-foot boat to try to catch some lobster that you could buy at a pretty reasonable price right now? I am thinking we ought to wait to see if it becomes a problem or if it looks like it's going to be a problem and then maybe put the effort in.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Let me say something and then I will go back to Jack. I partly agree with Chester. This is going to be a certain amount of work here for staff to work on this, but also I have a concern. I mean we just saw a presentation about traps, traps in closed areas, and trap movement. If a recreational guy goes out and spends the money on this gear and puts it out there and then decides that I don't really want to do this and then just leaves it out there, I think that's a problem as well, which is what we just got a presentation about.

MR. CONKLIN: I'm not on the committee, but I know in South Carolina, we have a two-lobster bag limit, I believe, for recreational fishermen, and I was wondering if that would pretty much constrain the amount of gear that at least one person had. Is that similar in North Carolina?

DR. DUVAL: Yes, that two per person daily bag limit is everywhere outside of Florida.

MR. COX: Sea bass trapping, we have a lot of regulations and things that we have to do, and it just doesn't seem right if we don't put something in place to address possibly a recreational trap fishery in federal waters developing. I mean it just seems that we need to put some kind of guidelines in place.

MR. BOWEN: Again, I'm not on the committee, and I really appreciate you letting me chime in on this discussion, but, like Jack says, our sea bass pots are mandated with mesh size and backs

and this and that and the other, but are the lobster traps mandated at all, as far as size or shoots or whatever? I am asking this because of the size, as it was mentioned earlier, the size of the lobsters up the coast are much greater, and so I was just curious about the dynamics of the lobster traps and if the dynamics were mandated.

MS. MCCAWLEY: They are in Florida, and that's what I believe Jack was referring to, is that if we were going to put in new regulations for traps outside of Florida that it would probably need to be a different size, maybe even shape, because the lobsters are bigger. That's what he was talking about a minute ago.

MR. BOWEN: To that point, this gentleman with the letter, is his traps going to have to be just like the Florida traps or would it be different?

MR. MEHTA: The regulations that he would have to adhere to are in 50 CFR 622.402. There is a whole bunch of requirements as to -- Then they pretty much closely match what it is off of Florida, a regular spiny lobster trap and all the specification that goes along with the regular spiny lobster trap, but, again, if you read the regulations, it's for commercial spiny lobster traps and not recreational spiny lobster, and so this is an anomaly. Nobody has ever used traps for recreational harvest of spiny lobster, and so these are the guidelines that we can give him, but the regulations, really, off of North Carolina are for commercial, for commercial lobster and commercial American lobster and blue crab fisheries.

MR. BOWEN: So he would be not under the regulations of two per person if he's commercial.

MR. MEHTA: No, the two per person is still valid.

MR. BOWEN: Again, I'm not a lobsterman at all, and so I -- The commercial limit is two per person as well?

MR. MEHTA: No, the recreational limit is two per person. There is no limit commercially.

MR. BOWEN: That's my point. This guy in North Carolina would not have a two per person limit if he's commercial trapping off of North Carolina.

MR. MEHTA: No, this is not a commercial trap. He can use the commercial specifications of the trap, but he is still doing recreational harvest, and so he would be restricted, by law, to two per person per trap. He would have to throw away everything else that he has in the trap. If he gets more than two spiny lobster per trap, he would have to release them.

DR. MACLAUCHLIN: It is two per person for recreational and commercial outside of Florida. There is a non-Florida federal permit for lobster, if you're selling them in Georgia, South Carolina, or North Carolina, but it's still two per person.

MR. BOWEN: I think I'm just going to stick with catching red snapper. Thank you.

MS. BECKWITH: I don't think that recreational trap use for lobster makes a lot of sense. I will leave it at that.

MR. HARTIG: I would agree, but the other thing is that you've got to put this circle that's at least twenty inches in diameter on your boat with a contrasting background, and I don't know how many recreational vessels are going to do that, but I think what we should do is follow up with this gentleman and ask him, after he read the regulations, was he going to pursue lobster trapping? I think if we did that and found out that if all the regulations that he had to go through, that if it was too much trouble, that we wouldn't have to do anything.

DR. DUVAL: I think that's great, following up with him. I mean I did not have a chance to contact this gentleman at all to ask what his intent was prior to the council meeting. I do think it might be a good topic for a future advisory panel meeting. What are our advisors hearing about interest in recreational use of trap gear? I would agree, if it something that's going to grow, we want to get a handle on it, sooner rather than later.

MS. MCCAWLEY: The one thing, and Kari can help me out, but that particular advisory panel does not meet on a regular basis.

DR. MACLAUCHLIN: That's correct, but, if you are developing a plan amendment to look at the ACL, you probably will want to convene the AP anyway, and we can add that to the agenda as well.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Okay. Is that good enough direction to staff? Back to Jack. Do you want to make a motion or do you want to have staff follow up with this gentleman and have the AP discuss it and then decide what to do? What are you thinking here?

MR. COX: I am thinking, at this time, it's probably better to have a motion that says there is no recreational trap gear allowed in South Atlantic waters, until we can work on this a little bit.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Let's get the motion on the board.

DR. CRABTREE: You would have to do a motion. You would have to do an amendment.

MS. MCCAWLEY: We have an amendment started.

DR. CRABTREE: So you would have to add an action in there to address it.

MS. MCCAWLEY: That's what is going on the board right now, to include an action to prohibit recreational traps in the EEZ outside of Florida or everywhere. Okay. We have a motion on the table. Is there a second to this motion? It's seconded by Ben. It's under discussion.

MR. HAYMANS: What is Florida's regulation with recreational use of commercial gear?

MS. MCCAWLEY: You cannot use traps, lobster traps, in the recreational lobster fishery at all. It is not an allowable gear.

DR. CRABTREE: Remember this is a joint plan with the Gulf, and so, when you say EEZ, are you talking just in the South Atlantic EEZ or are you talking the South Atlantic and the Gulf EEZ?

MR. COX: I would modify the motion for this motion to include just the South Atlantic.

MS. MCCAWLEY: All right. Is that okay with the seconder? Ben? All right. We have a motion on the table. Is there any objection to adding this action to the document? Seeing none, that motion stands approved.

DR. DUVAL: I think maybe just a suggestion to staff on this action, as it's being developed, that the range of alternatives probably include not just prohibition, but also limited -- A limit on the use of traps. I think there might be some public pushback if there wasn't at least something like that in there. Thank you.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Okay. We're getting that on the board.

MR. COX: I guess my question is, if one of the commercial guys wanted to set some traps off of North Carolina, would they be held to the same restrictions as Florida or how would that work?

MS. MCCAWLEY: I am going to look over there at Nik. I know Florida has -- He says it's in the CFR, and I'm assuming that that's for the entire South Atlantic region, and maybe even the Gulf region, but let me look across the table.

MR. MEHTA: I read a few of the regulations, and they are, by all means, not comprehensive, but, for example, in addition to the color code that the person would need and the registration number of the vessel, there is a requirement for a time-release buoy. There is different strengths that are required, depending on how far offshore you are, according to the Atlantic right whale plan, and then you need to make sure that it's not unclaimed or abandoned, and so it needs to have some kind of tending restrictions. It can only be tended in daylight hours.

Then Zack had mentioned about dimensions. The dimensions here would be like three-feet-by-two-feet-by-two-feet, or the volume equivalent, and then the trap constructed of material other than wood must have a panel constructed of wood, cotton, or other material that will degrade at the same rate as a wooden trap. Then there is a panel requirement. Such panel must be located in the upper half of the sides or on top of the trap, so that, when removed, there will be an opening in the trap no smaller than the diameter found at the throat or entrance of the trap. These are just a sample. I can go on, but there's a whole bunch of regulations.

MR. COX: My concern is we worked so hard on black sea bass trapping in the ocean that we don't want anybody to get confused if there was some kind of trap line that we're getting tangled in a mammal and we would be held responsible, the black sea bass fishermen, and so my concern is to protect all the work that we've done on that.

The markings, we have line markings now where we have to have three markings on each vertical line. We've done a lot of things here, and we have to have tags, and so I don't know in Florida if you guys have to have tags on your traps. If that is something, then we would need to require that for our fishermen as well.

MS. MCCAWLEY: There are more requirements in Florida. At the next one of these committee meetings, I could come back with a presentation about the regulations that are in place in Florida, because they are extensive. You have to mark your buoys. Whatever that color is, it's got to be

Spiny Lobster Committee
June 16, 2016
Cocoa Beach, FL

on your boat. It's got to be a certain height, so that law enforcement can see it. You also have to have your numbers. You are assigned a particular number, and so it's extensive.

MR. MEHTA: I just want to remind the council that, right now, there is no such permitting requirements for recreational traps, and so you would have to come up with a unique tag, if you decide to allow limited recreational harvest using traps. That system does not exist right now, and so we will have to create all of that.

MS. MCCAWLEY: That's a good point, and, just to follow up on what you asked, Jack, the State of Florida issues trap tags each year, and so each fisherman is given a tag to mark each trap, and they have to purchase these tags every year, and it's unique to the particular year, so that they can't reuse the tags. If those tags are lost or the trap is damaged, they have to reorder and us reissue the particular tag numbers that are lost, and so it's an extensive process.

MR. COX: I think that's something that we should require for fishermen outside of Florida as well, just so we know who has got gear in the water.

MS. MCCAWLEY: Is there more discussion on this? Okay. Any other business to come before the Lobster Committee? All right. Seeing none, this committee stands adjourned.

(Whereupon, the meeting was adjourned on June 16, 2016.)

Certified By:	Date:	
---------------	-------	--

Transcribed By:
Amanda Thomas Transcriptions
July 21, 2016

2016 COMMITTEES (continued)

SNAPPER GROUPER

Michelle Duval, Chair Jessica McCawley, Vice Chair

Anna Beckwith

Mel Bell

Zack Bowen

Chester Brewer

Mark Brown

Chris Conklin

Jack Cox

Roy Crabtree

Ben Hartig

Doug Haymans

Charlie Phillips

Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Tony DeLernia/Dewey

Hemilright

SIM ESTES

Staff contact: Myra Brouwer

SOPPs

Chris Conklin, Chair

Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair

Anna Beckwith

Roy Crabtree

Michelle Duval

Ben Hartig

LTJG Tara Pray

Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

SPINY LOBSTER

✓ Jessica McCawley, Chair

Ben Hartig, Vice-Chair

✓ Chester Brewer

/Jack Cox

√Roy Crabtree

Staff contact: Kari MacLauchlin

DR. BONNIE PONWETH
DR. SACK MCGOVERN
CAPT. MARK GORDON
IRIS LOWERY
SOCEUN D'AMBROSIO
TOM MATTHEWS
TRACY DUNN
JEFF RADONSKI
DR. MARCEL REICHERT
DR. MIKE LARKIN
ERIKA BURGESS
DR. ANDY STREICHECK
BRUCE IRWIN
NIK MEHTA
RICK DEVICTOR

SOHN SANCHEZ

2016 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP (continued)

Doug Haymans
Coastal Resources Division
GA Dept. of Natural Resources
One Conservation Way, Suite 300
Brunswick, GA 31520-8687
912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f)
doughaymans@gmail.com

Dr. Wilson Laney
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator
P.O. Box 33683
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617
(110 Brooks Ave
237 David Clark Laboratories,
NCSU Campus
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617)
919/515-5019 (ph)
919/515-4415 (f)
Wilson Laney@fws.gov

Jessica McCawley
Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission
2590 Executive Center Circle E.,
Suite 201
Tallahassee, FL 32301
850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f)
jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com

LTJG Tara Pray U.S. Coast Guard 909 SE 1st Ave. Miami, FL 33131 tara.c.pray@uscg.mil

Deirdre Warner-Kramer
Office of Marine Conservation
OES/OMC
2201 C Street, N.W.
Department of State, Room 5806
Washington, DC 20520
202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f)
Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

2016 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP

COUNCIL CHAIR

Dr. Michelle Duval NC Division of Marine Fisheries 3441 Arendell Street (PO Box 769) Morehead City, NC 28557 252/808-8011 (ph); 252/726-0254 (f) michelle.duval@ncdenr.gov

VICE-CHAIR

Charlie Phillips
Phillips Seafood/Sapelo Sea Farms
1418 Sapelo Avenue, N.E.
Townsend, GA 31331
912/832-4423 (ph); 912/832-6228 (f)
Ga capt@vahoo.com

Robert E. Beal Executive Director Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission 1050 N. Highland St., Suite 200 A-N Arlington, VA 20001 703/842-0740 (ph); 703/842-0741 (f) rbeal@asmfc.org

Anna Beckwith
1907 Paulette Road
Morehead City, NC 28557
252/671-3474 (ph)
AnnaBarriosBeckwith@gmail.com

Mel Bell Robert Boyles
S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources
Marine Resources Division
P.O. Box 12559
(217 Ft. Johnson Road)
Charleston, SC 29422-2559
843/953-9007 (ph)
843/953-9159 (fax)

bellm@dnr.sc.gov

Zack Bowen
P.O. Box 30825
Savannah, GA 31410
912/398-3733 (ph)
fishzack@comcast.net

W. Chester Brewer 250 Australian Ave. South Suite 1400 West Palm Beach, FL 33408 561/655-4777 (ph) WCBLAW@aol.com

Mark Brown
3642 Pandora Drive

/ Mt. Pleasant, SC 29466
843/881-9735 (ph); 843/881-4446 (f)
capt.markbrown@comcast.net

Chris Conklin
P.O. Box 972

Murrells Inlet, SC 29576
843/543-3833
conklinsafmc@gmail.com

Jack Cox 2010 Bridges Street Morehead City, NC 28557 252/728-9548 Dayboat1965@gmail.com

Dr. Roy Crabtree Regional Administrator NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region 263 13th Avenue South St. Petersburg, FL 33701 727/824-5301 (ph); 727/824-5320 (f) roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

Ben Hartig 9277 Sharon Street Hobe Sound, FL 33455 772/546-1541 (ph) mackattackben@att.net

COUNCIL STAFF

Executive Director

Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Deputy Director - Science & Statistics

John Carmichael john.carmichael@safmc.net Deputy Director - Management

Dr. Brian Cheuvront brian.cheuvront@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Financial Secretary

Debra Buscher deb.buscher@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Chip Collier chip.collier@safmc.net

Administrative Officer

Mike Collins mike.collins@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist

Dr. Mike Errigo mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fishery Economist

John Hadley

John.hadley@safmc.net

Public Information Officer

Kim Iverson kim.iverson@safmc.net

Fisheries Social Scientist

Dr. Kari MacLauchlin kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

Purchasing & Grants

Julie O'Dell kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist

Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Fishery Outreach Specialist

Amber Von Harten amber.vonharten@safmc.net

SEDAR Coordinators

Dr. Julie Neer - <u>julie.neer@safmc.net</u> Julia Byrd - <u>julia.byrd@safmc.net</u>

Timestamp	Full Name	Email	Mailing Address (If your	How do you participate in fisheries in the South Atlantic? (Check all that apply)
6/16/2016 9:09:21	Dick Brame	dbrame55@gmail.com	on file	Private Recreational Angler, Non- Governmental Organization
6/16/2016 9:11:30	Trip Aukeman	taukeman@ccaflorida.org	on file	Private Recreational Angler
6/16/2016 9:30:39	David Bush	davidbush@ncfish.org	on file	NCFA
6/16/2016 10:22:10	Frank Helies	fchelies@att.net	on file	Non-Governmental Organization
6/16/2016 10:44:29	John Conley	thcjohn100@yahoo.com	on file	Commercial Fisherman
6/16/2016 11:09:41	Leda Dunmire	Idunmire@pewtrusts.org	on file	Non-Governmental Organization
6/16/2016 12:59:27	Elizabeth Joln	elizabethjolin@bellsouth.net	on file	Charter/Headboat/For- hire
6/16/2016 13:00:23	Dean Foster	dfoster@pewtrusts.org	on file	Non-Governmental Organization
6/16/2016 14:05:01	William F. Coley	wmcoley1@gmail.com	on file	Private Recreational Angler

THURSDAY - JUNE 16,2016 WEBINAN ATTENDANCE

Last Name	First Name	Email Address	
Abeels	Holly	habeels@ufl.edu	
Alvarado	Nicolas	Nicolas.Alvarado@noaa.gov	
Anderson	Joshua	joshuamarlinanderson1@hotmail.com	
Austin	Anthony	redress@ec.rr.com	
Ballenger	Joey	ballengerj@dnr.sc.gov	
Barber	John	johnb@revcmpsys.com	
Beideman	Terri	terri.beideman@vac-usa.com	
Bell	Mel	bellm@dnr.sc.gov	
Berry	Kyle	Kmania13@gmail.com	
Binns	Holly	hbinns@pewtrusts.org	
Blow	Wes	wesamy2000@cox.net	
Brennan	Ken	kenneth.brennan@noaa.gov	
Brouwer	Myra	myra.brouwer@safmc.net	
Bush	David	davidbush@ncfish.org	
Byrd	Julia	juliabyrd@hotmail.com	
CONKLIN	CHRIS	CONKLINSAFMC@GMAIL.COM	
Caton	patrick	info@littleclam.com	
Clarke	Lora	lclarke@pewtrusts.org	
Crimian	Robert	rcrimian@tnc.org	
Crosson	Scott	scott.crosson@noaa.gov	
D'Ambrosio	Jocelyn	jocelyn.dambrosio@noaa.gov	
Davis	Meghan Davis Joshua Davis	Christopher.Davis@mrc.virginia.gov	
DeVictor	Rick	rick.devictor@noaa.gov	
Desfosse	Joseph	joseph.desfosse@noaa.gov	
Erwin	Gwen	gwen.erwin@myfwc.com	
FARMER	NICK	nick.farmer@noaa.gov	
Foster	Dean	dfoster@pewtrusts.org	
Franco	Dawn	dawn.franco@dnr.ga.gov	
French	Jonathan	french60wasp@gmail.com	
Gerhart	Susan	susan.gerhart@noaa.gov	
Gerhart	Susan	gerhartgreen@gmail.com	
Gore	Karla	karla.gore@noaa.gov	
Guyas	Martha	martha.guyas@myfwc.com	
Hadley	John	john.hadley@safmc.net	
Hudson	Rusty	DSF2009@aol.com	
Iverson	Kim	kim.iverson@safmc.net	
Jepson	Michael	michael.jepson@noaa.gov	
Jiorle	Ryan	ryan.jiorle@mrc.virginia.gov	
Johnson	Denise	denise.johnson@noaa.gov	
Kemp	Brian	Kempbrian6971@gmail.com	
Knowlton	Kathy	kathy.knowlton@dnr.ga.gov	

6/16/16 WEGINAR ATTENDANCE

Lamberte	Tony	tony.lamberte@noaa.gov
Larkin	Michael	michael.larkin@noaa.gov
Lee	Jennifer	Jennifer.lee@noaa.gov
Levy	Mara	mara.levy@noaa.gov
MacLauchlin	Kari	kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net
Mahood	Bob	rmahood@mindspring.com
Malinowski	Rich	rich.malinowski@noaa.gov
Matthews	Tom	tom.matthews@myfwc.com
Mehta	Nikhil	nikhil.mehta@noaa.gov
Merrifield	Jeanna	jeannam@wildoceanmarket.com
Miller	Janet	janet.l.miller@noaa.gov
Morton	Sean	sean.morton@Noaa.gov
Neer	Julie	julie.neer@safmc.net
Park	Paul	paulpark1988@yahoo.com
Raine	Karen	karen.raine@noaa.gov
Ralston	Kellie	krralston@icloud.com
Records	David	david.records@noaa.gov
Renchen	Gabrielle	gabby.renchen@myfwc.com
Reynolds	Julia	reynoldsj@dnr.sc.gov
Sands	Kathleen	kathleen.sands@noaa.gov
Schwaab	Alexandra	alexandra.schwaab@accsp.org
Shipley	Krista	krista.shipley@myfwc.com
Shipman	Susan	susanshipman@att.net
Smit-Brunello	Monica	monica.smit-brunello@noaa.gov
Stephen	Jessica	jessica.stephen@noaa.gov
Takade-Heumacher	Helen	htakade@edf.org
Travis	Michael	mike.travis@noaa.gov
Uibel	Nicole	nicole.uibel@noaa.gov
Webster	Robert	websterp@dnr.sc.gob
bubley	walter	bubleyw@dnr.sc.gov
С	joe	joe@va.gov
cimino	joe	joe.cimino@mrc.virginia.gov
holiman	stephen	stephen.holiman@noaa.gov
kilgour	morgan	morgan.kilgour@gulfcouncil.org
pugliese	roger	roger.pugliese@safmc.net
rindone	ryan	ryan.rindone@gulfcouncil.org
smart	tracey	smartt@dnr.sc.gov
vara	mary	mary.vara@noaa.gov